
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20460 

MAY 21  

Mr. Addison D. Davis, N 
Deputy Assirrtant Secretary of the Army 
Installations and Environment 
lhphmmt of the Army 
110 Army Pentagon 
W d h g t o a  D.C. 203 10-0600 

Dear Mr. Davis 

Thank you for your letter of March 30,2007, reqwsting thaf the EnvirOnmentlnl 
Protection Agency (EPA) provide guidance on the applicability of Resource 
Co-on and Recovery Act (RCU) hazardous waste rem0119 to tbt disposd of 
Unified Oroup Ration - Express (UGR-E). 

My &bas reviewed the Material Way D@a Sheet (MSDS) prapared by the 
man- of the fi8me1es8 heaters contained in UGR-E. Tmt%mh, Inc.. and the data 
provided by the Research, Development, and Enghemkg C~UUM~I~(RDECOM). Based 
on this i n f o d o n ,  EPA believes that the October 29.2004, guidance regarding the 
management of Flameiess Ration Heaters supplied with individual ~ e a l s ;  Ready to Eat, 
is applicable to the UGR-E tlemeless heabm. I have enclosed this guidance for your 

Your request for guidance included two disposal scenarios. In the case of the 
disposal of exp&d UGR-E (Mch include food pr&ucts and four individually packaged 
chemical batas) the Amcy believes that it is unlikely that intact UGR-Es would be 
RCRA hamdo& waste-w& disposed. The fotn ch&icd heatsrs in the UGR-E are 
desimed to raise the temmxature of the food h m  40°F to lM°F, and the heaters do not 
ex& 21a°F. Became ihe mnpemme elevation that would be caused by UGR-E 
&with~inaldisnotaregtenouahtocartsealaadflll6Roro~~~ 
cause a'dgnificant bmrd, EPA believes the ke&rs, when packaged as prnt of the UGR- 
E, do not "react violently wifhwafer" as desoribed in 40 CFR $261.23(as). Based on 
the information you psovided, the rate of the reaction ofthe chemical heater when reacted 
with m-saline water is much slower then the rate of the reaction when the 



heaters art Bctivated witti the 1.5 % sslt water included in the UGR-E reduch the .. 
possibility that any hydrogen that is g e n d  could reach high en& c o e o n s  to 
become explosive. Themfan, EPA believes the rate of gas generaton under plausible 
UQR-E waste management circumstanms indicates that no potentially explosive 
mixtures would be generated (see reactivity criteria at 40 CFR 8 261.23(a)(3)). 

The other scenario desoibed in your 1- was the disposal of mused, individual 
chemical heatas; that is, heaters without the food produoe d other UGR-E 
components, Ysed far the UGR-E. EPA believes an mud W M  chemicsl heater 
takes fimm an UOR-E issued for use in the field and being disposed of by a unit is 
excluded h m  RCRA Subtitle C regulation, u n k  the hopschold waste exclusion in 40 
CFR 5 261.40(1). There are four heaters in each UGR-E, so it is plausible and wen 
iikeiy t .  multiple mused ohemical heaters, which are not packaged with the food 
products and other UGR-E components, could be diaposed af at the same time. The total 
amouut of hydrogen gas and heat generated by multiple chemical heaters would be 
nhtantially more than the amount generated by a single heater. Although in this 
situation the Wvidual mused heaters are excluded from RCRA Subtitle C regulation as 
household wastes, they may exhibit the hazardous chwteristic of d i t y  (see 40 CFR 
8 26123(a)(3). Accordingly, EPA urges generatas snd handlm to menage the unused 
UGR-E chamid heaters carefolly. The A m y  ammiate* the Army's efforts to find an - - - -  
envbnraenWy m v e  solutibn to the mauagement of urn-E. h m e v w  pomile, 
we encourage neeycliq of unused chemical heatars, either by retraning them to the 
rmm&cQm or ~ C O n s i ~ e n t  to aurplus. 

In general, states are auth0tim-d by EPA to implement the RCRA bazadous waste 
program. An authorized state's hazardous waste regdations ate applicable w W n  the 
m e  in lieu of the Federal m$uldons, and stab' regulations may be more stringent thw~ 
the Federal qdations. Thus, you &odd 8190 check with the appropriate state agency 
or* if the state is not the EPA regional oBm, to confirm the requkemreqnirements 
applicable to your UGR-E managfgnent activities. 

I hope this letter eladtles P A ' S  views regamkg the disposal of UGR-E, As you 
know, the umc1usione mp& here rely significantly on your repmsentatiom of results 
firom tests uwfbmed on the UGR-E chemical heaten. Should YOU have aue.stions about 

Assistant Aduhis-r 


